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Current or Historic Place Locale Remarks 
Adams Mill 35-SW also known as Coxes Mill, Coxes Mill PO operational 1877-1993 (Smith) (Heritage3) 

Adkinson Head 79-SW moved to RR and renamed Clio in the 1860's, Adkinson PO 1855-60 (Foscue) (Smith) 

Afton PO 40-SE in operation 1890-1905 (Smith) 

Akinsville SW first appears on a map dating from 1908 

Alexanders Landing 84-SE appears on the county soil survey map of 1914 

Alexanders Mill 48-SE appears on the county soil survey map of 1914 

Alston PO 58-SW variant for Texasville, in operation 1892-1907 (Foscue) 

Andrews Store 62-SW appears on the county soil survey map of 1914 

Anglins Bridge 96-NW appears on the county soil survey map of 1914 

Baker Hill SE also known as Bakers Hill, PO in operation 1876-1987, incorporated in 1997 (Foscue) (Smith) (Heritage3)

Barkers Store 26-SW appears on the county soil survey map of 1914 

Batesville NE for the plantation of  W.M. Bates, PO open 1852-1856, 1875-1942 (Foscue) (Smith) 

Baxters SW community around a school found on a map dating from 1908 

Beauchamp Mill 128-NE established in 1840’s by Green Beauchamp, Stewart Mill after 1869 (Heritage3) 

Belcher PO 41-SE in operation 1883-1913 (Smith) 

Bells Crossroads NW began appearing on maps in the 1920’s 

Bethel SW first appears as Bethel Stop on map dating from 1914 

Bickleys Mill 98-NW appears on the county soil survey map of 1914 

Big Eddy 103-NE appears on the county soil survey map of 1914 

Black Gum Corners 57-SW appears on the county soil survey map of 1914 

Blue Springs SW named for nearby lime springs, incorporated in 1907, PO in operation 1902-1957 (TPT) (Foscue) 

Boguemore 76-NE variant for Lugo circa 1872 

Boot Hill SW first appears on the 1959 edition of the county highway map 

Boyd PO 15-NW in operation 1890-1904 (Smith) 

Boyds Store 64-SE appears on the county soil survey map of 1914 

Brocks Mill 52-SW appears on the county soil survey map of 1914 

Browns Mill 59-SE appears on the county soil survey map of 1914 

Buck Branch PO 140-NW in operation 1854-1859, variant for Greens Crossroad and Scrogginsville (McLaney) 

Bush PO 71-NE in operation from 1882 to 1906 (USPO) 

Bushville PO 37-SE in operation 1858-1866, 1868-1869 (Smith) 

Campbell Gin 114-SW appears on the county soil survey map of 1914 

Cannon Store 117-SW appears on the county soil survey map of 1914 

Cedar 5-NE appears on the county soil survey map of 1914 

Center Ridge 86-NW community around Center Ridge Church 

Clarks Store 29-SW appears on the county soil survey map of 1914 

Clayton NW county seat and PO est. in 1834, incorporated in 1841, named for General James Clayton (Foscue) 

Clio SW first known as Adkinson Head, Clio PO established in 1860, incorporated in 1890 (Foscue)  

Coal Springs 51-SW appears on the county soil survey map of 1914 

Cochran 76-NE variant for Lugo, Cochran PO open 1888-1904 (USPO) (Smith) 

Cole Ridge 72-NE PO in operation 1879-1904, named for postmaster Nathan Cole (TPT) 

Cooks Ford Bridge 135-NW found on the county soil survey map dating from 1914 

Comer NE called Harris 1889-1907, named for Governor Comer, PO 1907-1976 (Harris) (Smith) 

Cotton Hill SE PO in operation from 1874-1924, also known as Hatfields Store (Harris) 

Cowikee 3-NE variant for Spring Hill, PO in operation 1843-1875 (Harris) 

Cox Mill 35-SW also known as Adams Mill, PO in operation 1877-1993 (Smith) (Heritage3) 

Days Mill 112-SW appears on the county soil survey map of 1914 

Dickle Mill 16-NW appears on the county soil survey map of 1914 

Doster SW PO established in 1912 and closed in 1920, named for a local family (Harris) (Smith) 

Easterlings Store 119-SW appears on the county soil survey map of 1914 

Edgefield SE first appears on the 1972 edition of the county highway map 

Elamville SW PO in operation 1875-1957, named for a church at the site (TPT) (Foscue) 

Epworth PO 45-SE in operation 1892-1898 (Smith) 

Eufaula NE incorporated in 1832 as Irwinton, Eufaula PO established in 1844 (Foscue) 

Eufaula Air Force Station 139-NE in operation from 1959 to 1968, Air Force Radar Installation 

Fairmont 2-NE found on maps dating from 1914 to 1929 

Farmers Gin  110-SE appears on the county soil survey map of 1914 

Fields 22-NE a rail station found on the county soil survey map of 1914 
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Flower Dale PO 7-NE in operation 1872-1874 (Smith) 

Floyds Mill 32-SW appears on the county soil survey map of 1914 

Foraker PO 38-SE in operation 1892-1893 (Smith) 

Fort Barbour 80-NE erected in 1836, PO in operation 1844-1851 (Brannon2) (Smith) 

Fort Bell 81-NE  

Fort Browder PO 19-NE in operation 1849-1875 (Smith) 

Foy Corner 137-SE found on the 1937 edition of the county highway map 

Fuqua Gin 55-SW appears on the county soil survey map of 1914 

Gaino SE named for Gaino Watson, PO in operation 1897-1907 (Foscue) (Smith) 

Galilee Corner 1-NE  

Garmon Crossroads NW first appears on a map dating from 1937 

Gilfords Store 85-SW appears on the county soil survey map of 1914 

Greens Crossroad SW known as Buck Branch PO 1854-1859, aka Scrogginsville, Greens Crossroad by 1959 (McLaney) 

Grice Store 61-SW appears on the county soil survey map of 1914 

Grubbs PO 28-SW in operation 1890-1892 (Smith) 

Haglers Mill 106-SW appears on the county soil survey map of 1914 

Harris 75-NE variant for Comer, Harris PO in operation 1873-1907 (Smith) 

Hatfields Store 109-SE variant for Cotton Hill 

Hawkinsville NE PO in operation 1878-1909 (Smith) 

Helms Bridge 118-SW appears on the county soil survey map of 1914 

Helms Store 116-SW appears on the county soil survey map of 1914 

Hobdy SW a former railroad town 

Hobdy Bridge 133-SW found on the county soil survey map dating from 1914 

Hoboken NE first appears on a map dating from 1908 

Hollomans Store 136-NW found on the county soil survey map dating from 1914 

Houstons Store 39-SE found on the county soil survey map dating from 1914 

Howe NE Howe PO in operation 1882-1909 (Smith) 

Hurst PO 31-SW in operation 1892-1894 (Smith) 

Huttos Store 34-SE appears on the county soil survey map of 1914 

Irwinton 125-NE variant for Eufaula, Irwinton PO in operation 1836-1844 (Smith) 

Isco PO 63-SW in operation 1911-1912 (Smith) 

Jernigans Mill 46-SE appears on the county soil survey map of 1914 

Johnsons Store 105-SW appears on the county soil survey map of 1914 

Johnstons Store 43-SE appears on the county soil survey map of 1914 

Joiners Bridge 132-SW found on the county soil survey map dating from 1914 

King PO 67-SE opened and closed in 1893 (Smith) 

Kings 78-SE PO in operation 1842-1861, 1867-1884 (Smith)  

Kings Mill 77-SW appears on the county soil survey map of 1914 

Kiwikaki 88-NE Hitchiti Indian town (AHC2) 

Knowlton 100-NE appears on the county soil survey map of 1914 

Lamars Store 111-SE variant for Terese 

Laurel Grove 12-NW PO in operation 1838-1839, gone from maps by 1900 (Smith) 

Lawsons Bridge 134-SW found on the county soil survey map dating from 1914 

Lewis Store 50-SW appears on the county soil survey map of 1914 

Lime Sink 83-SE appears on the current U.S.G.S. 7.5 minute quadrangle 

Lindsey SW PO in operation 1892-1904 (Smith) 

Lingo 60-SW PO in operation 1899-1904 (Smith) 

Little Scotland 129-SW settled in the early 1820’s (Heritage3) 

Littles Bridge 95-NW appears on the county soil survey map of 1914 

Lodi PO 65-SE in operation 1885-1905 (Smith) 

Louisville SW also known as Lewisville, Pike County seat 1821-1827, PO est. in 1827, inc. in 1834(Foscue) (Smith) 

Lugo NE also known as Boguemore circa 1872, Tub 1881-1888, and Cochrane 1888-1904 

McCarrols Mill 47-SE appears on the county soil survey map of 1914 

McInnis PO 53-SW opened and closed in 1886 (Smith) 

McSwains Bridge 131-SW found on the county soil survey map dating from 1914 

Mercers Store 33-SW appears on the county soil survey map of 1914 
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Meyers Store 104-SW appears on the county soil survey map of 1914 
Millers Ford SW  

Mincheners Bridge 130-SW found on the county soil survey map dating from 1914 
Mt. Andrew NW PO in operation 1846-1955, named after a local church (Harris) (Smith) 

Mt. Gilead 93-NE community around a church in 1914, a cemetery is all that remains 

Mt. Olive 17-NW appears on the county soil survey map of 1914 

Mt. Serene 21-NE PO in operation 1848-1854 (Smith) 

New Topia 73-SW PO in operation 1854-1866, 1868-1877 (Smith) 

Nix Mill 99-NW appears on the county soil survey map of 1914 
Oateston SE first appears on a map dating from 1908 

Oateston PO 42-SE in operation 1882-1907 (Smith) 

Okitiyakni 89-SE Creek Indian village 

Old Clio 79-SW settlement moved to new location on the rail road and renamed Clio in 1880's (Foscue) 
Osco NE first appears on a map dating from 1908 

Park PO 127-SW variant for Blue Springs, Park PO in operation 1895-1902 (Smith) 

Pea River Battleground 25-SW  

Pea River PO 49-SW in operation 1838-1861,1876-1890  (Smith) 

Phillips Store 120-SW appears on the county soil survey map of 1914 
Pleasant Hill SE community around a church found on a map dating from 1959 

Poplar Springs 92-NE appears on the county soil survey map of 1914 
Pratts SW founded as Pratt's Station circa 1890, named for a local family (Foscue) 

Prospect PO 36-SW opened and closed in 1880 (Smith) 

Ray PO 69-SE in operation 1903-1906 (Smith) 

Reeders Mill PO 54-SW in operation 1877-1904  (Harris) 

Reynolds Store 4-NE appears on the county soil survey map of 1914 
Richards Crossroads SE first appears on a map dating from 1908 

Richards Mill 107-SE appears on the county soil survey map of 1914 

Richardsons Bridge 94-NW appears on the county soil survey map of 1914 

Roaches Mill 10-NE appears on a map dating from 1856 

Robertson Mill 30-SW appears on the county soil survey map of 1914 

Rock Hill PO 6-NE opened and closed in 1868 (Smith) 

Sanders Store 14-NW appears on the county soil survey map of 1914 
Sandy Point SE first appears on a map dating from 1908 

Scandrett 138-NE appears on a map dating from 1915 

Scroggins Store 23-SW appears on the county soil survey map of 1914 

Scrogginsville 140-NW variant for Greens Crossroads and Buck Branch PO (McLaney) 

Solomons Mills 27-SW PO in operation 1878-1882, 1900-1904  (Smith) 

Spio PO 56-SW established in 1888, closed in 1904 (Smith) 

Spires Store 97-NW appears on the county soil survey map of 1914 

Spivey PO 70-SE in operation 1898-1906 (Smith) 
Spring Hill NE founded during the 1830’s, Cowikee is a variant name (Foscue) 

Star Hill PO 11-NW in operation 1877-1904 (Smith) 

Stewarts Gin 108-SE appears on the county soil survey map of 1914 

Stewart Mill 128-NE established in 1840’s as Beauchamp Mill, Stewart Mill after 1869 (Heritage3) 

Swanners Gin 113-SW appears on the county soil survey map of 1914 

Tabernacle 101-NE appears on the county soil survey map of 1914 

Taylors Store 91-NE appears on the county soil survey map of 1914 
Teals Crossroads SW first appears on the 1972 edition of the county highway map 

Terese SE PO in operation 1882-1884,1887,1899-1902, also known as Lamars Store (Smith) 

Tew 122-SW appears on the county soil survey map of 1914 
Texasville SW PO in operation 1857-1866, also known as Alston circa 1900 (Foscue) (Smith) 

Tippins Store 115-SW variant for Tyler Crossroads 

Tub  76-NE variant for Lugo, Tub PO in operation 1881-1888 (Smith) 

Tullis 82-NE appears as a rail station on a 1915 map, now a part of Eufaula 
Twin Springs NE first appears on the 1959 edition of the county highway map 

Tyler Crossroads SW also known as Tipping Store 

Vaughn 126-NE PO in operation 1893-1907 (Smith) 
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Ventress Mill 18-NW appears on the county soil survey map of 1914 

Walkers Gin 123-SE appears on the county soil survey map of 1914 

White Oak NE also known as White Oak Springs 

White Oak Springs 20-NE variant for White Oak, PO in operation 1837-43, 1856-61, 1868-1932 (Smith) 

White Pond PO 68-SE in operation 1870-1887 (Smith) 

Williams Mills 8-NE appears on a map dating from 1856 

Williams PO 87-SW in operation 1903-1904 (Smith) 

Williamston 74-SE first settled circa 1820, PO 1827-1844, the oldest town in the county (Harris) (Smith) 

Willis Store 13-NW appears on the county soil survey map of 1914 

Wilsons Gin 121-SW appears on the county soil survey map of 1914 

Wilsons Mill 44-SE appears on the county soil survey map of 1914 

Woods Mill 124-SE appears on the county soil survey map of 1914 

Woolridge Landing 9-NE appears on the county soil survey map of 1914 

Wyecott Plantation 102-NE appears on the current U.S.G.S. 7.5 minute quadrangle 

Wylaunee NE first appears on a map dating from 1908 

Yufala 90-NE Creek Indian village (ACH2) 

Zeigler PO 24-SW established in 1889 and closed in 1906 (Smith) 

Zorns Mill 66-SE appears on the county soil survey map of 1914 

 
 
Numerical Listing of Historical Places 

1 Galilee Corner 30 Robertson Mill 58 Alston PO 84 Alexanders Landing 113 Swanners Gin 

2 Fairmont 31 Hurst PO 59 Browns Mill 85 Gilfords Store 114 Campbell Gin 

3 Cowikee 32 Floyds Mill 60 Lingo 86 Center Ridge 115 Tippins Store 

4 Reynolds Store 33 Mercers Store 61 Grice Store 87 Williams PO 116 Helms Store 

5 Cedar 34 Huttos Store 62 Andrews Store 88 Kawikaki 117 Cannon Store 

6 Rock Hill PO 35 Adams Mill 63 Isco PO 89 Okitiyakni 118 Helms Bridge 

7 Flower Dale PO 35 Cox Mill 64 Boyds Store 90 Yufala 119 Easterlings Store 

8 Williams Mills 36 Prospect PO 65 Lodi PO 91 Taylors Store 120 Phillips Store 

9 Woolridge Landing 37 Bushville PO 66 Zorns Mill 92 Poplar Springs 121 Wilsons Gin 

10 Roaches Mill 38 Foraker PO 67 King PO 93 Mt. Gilead 122 Tew 

11 Star Hill PO 39 Houstons Store 68 White Pond PO 94 Richardsons Bridge 123 Walkers Gin 

12 Laurel Grove 40 Afton PO 69 Ray PO 95 Littles Bridge 124 Woods Mill 

13 Willis Store 41 Belcher PO 70 Spivey PO 96 Anglins Bridge 125 Irwinton 

14 Sanders Store 42 Oateston PO 71 Bush PO 97 Spires Store 126 Vaughn 

15 Boyd PO 43 Johnstons Store 72 Cole Ridge  98 Bickleys Mill 127 Park PO 

16 Dickle Mill 44 Wilsons Mill 73 New Topia 99 Nix Mill 128 Beauchamp Mill 

17 Mt. Olive 45 Epworth PO 74 Williamston 100 Knowlton 128 Stewart Mill 

18 Ventress Mill 46 Jernigans Mill 75 Harris 101 Tabernacle 129 Little Scotland 

19 Fort Browder PO 47 McCarrols Mill 76 Cochran 102 Wyecott Plantation 130 Mincheners Bridge 

20 White Oak Springs 48 Alexanders Mill 76 Tub 103 Big Eddy 131 McSwains Bridge 

21 Mt. Serene 49 Pea River PO 76 Boguemore 104 Meyers Store 132 Joiners Bridge 

22 Fields 50 Lewis Store 77 Kings Mill 105 Johnsons Store 133 Hobdy Bridge 

23 Scroggins Store 51 Coal Springs 78 Kings 106 Haglers Mill 134 Lawson Bridge 

24 Zeigler PO 52 Brocks Mill 79 Adkinson Head 107 Richards Mill 135 Cooks Ford Bridge 

25 Pea River Battleground 53 McInnis PO 79 Old Clio 108 Stewarts Gin 136 Hollomans Store 

26 Barkers Store 54 Reeders Mill PO 80 Fort Barbour 109 Hatfields Store 137 Foy Corner 

27 Solomons Mills 55 Fuqua Gin 81 Fort Bell 110 Farmers Gin 138 Scandrett 

28 Grubbs PO 56 Spio PO 82 Tullis 111 Lamars Store 139 Eufaula Air Force Station 

29 Clarks Store 57 Black Gum Corners 83 Lime Sink 112 Days Mill 140 Buck Branch PO 

        140 Scrogginsville 

 
 
U.S. Census of Population by Decade 
 Towns 2000 1990 1980 1970 1960 1950 1940 1930 1920 1910 1900 1890 1880 1870 

Batesville    143 137 
Blue Springs 121 108 112 137 94 111 167 164 162 117  
Clayton 1,475 1,564 1,589 1,626 1,313 1,583 1,813 1,717 989 1,130 998 997 761
Clio 2,206 1,365 1,224 1,065 929 840 841 867 838 580 326 
Eufaula 13,908 13,220 12,097 9,102 8,357 6,906 6,269 5,208 4,939 4,259 4,532 4,394 3,836 3,185
Louisville 612 728 791 785 890 622 662 587 504 483 416 288 211
White Oak Springs    100 635 249 475 
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